Unconfirmed Minutes of the
Mental Health and Capacity Legislation Committee 
Held on 19 October 2021 – 10am
Via MS Teams

	Chair:
	
	

	Ceri Phillips
	CP
	UHB Vice Chair and Committee Chair

	Present:
	
	

	Sara Moseley
	SM
	Independent Member – Third Sector

	In Attendance
	
	

	Caroline Bird
	CB
	Interim Chief Operating Officer 

	Jeff Champney-Smith
	JCS
	Chair, Powers of Discharge sub-Committee

	Daniel Crossland
	DC
	Deputy Director of Operations – Mental Health

	Steve Curry
	SC
	Deputy Chief Executive Officer 

	Nicola Foreman
	NF
	Director of Corporate Governance

	Scott Mclean
	SMc
	Director of Operations – Children & Women

	David Seward
	DS
	[bookmark: _GoBack]Interim Mental Health Act Manager

	Rose Whittle
	RW
	Directorate Manager – Child Health

	Observer:
	
	

	Marcia Donovan
	MD
	Head of Corporate Governance

	Secretariat:
	
	

	Nathan Saunders
	NS
	Corporate Governance Officer

	Apologies:
	
	

	Akmal Hanuk
	AH
	Independent Member - Community

	Ruth Walker
	RW
	Executive Nurse Director



	MHCL 21/10/001
	Welcome & Introductions

The Committee Chair (CC) welcomed everybody to the meeting.

	ACTION

	MHCL 21/10/002
	Apologies for Absence

Apologies for Absence were noted
	

	MHCL 21/10/003
	Declarations of Interest 

The Independent Member – Third Sector (IMTS) advised the Committee that she was a member of the General Medical Council (GMC).

	

	MHCL 21/10/004
	Minutes of the Committee Meeting held on 20 July 2021

The minutes of the meeting held on the 20 July 2021 were received.

The Committee resolved that:

1. The minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2021 be approved as a true and accurate record of the meeting.
	




	MHCL 21/10/005
	Action Log 20 July 2021

The action log was received.

The Deputy Chief Executive Officer (DECO) advised the Committee that a discussion would be required for a new action around waiting times and waiting list profiles for people with protected characteristics. 

It was noted that Cardiff and Vale University Health Board (CVUHB) had been considering the same when looking at overall access.

The CC advised the Committee that the Director of Corporate Governance (DCG) and he would meet to discuss and embrace some of the data gathered around access. 

The Committee agreed to carry forward the action referenced MHCL 21/07/009 to the next meeting.

The Committee resolved that:

1. The Action Log taken from 20 July 2021 was noted.

	














CC/NF

	MHCL 21/10/006
	Chair’s Action taken since last meeting

The CC advised the Committee that no Chair’s Action had been taken.

	



	MHCL 21/10/007
	Any Other Urgent Business Agreed with the Chair

a) Compliance with MH Measure relating to Children and Young People

It was noted that a discussion regarding compliance with the Mental Health Measure relating to Children and Young People would be had when discussing the agenda item 10.1 - Mental Health Measure Monitoring Reporting including Care and Treatment Plans Update Report.

	




	MHCL 21/10/008
	Patient  / Staff Story

The Patient Story – ‘My Battle with Food’ was received.

Following the patient story, the Director of Operations – Children & Women (DOCW) advised the Committee that the medical model would never have worked for the patient in the story because over medicalising the condition at the start of the patient’s journey had been the wrong thing to do.

It was noted that through investment, recruitment and transformation, the Health Board would seek to make the improvements required right across the Mental Health spectrum. 

The Independent Member – Third Sector (IMTS) noted that it was clear that the patient required a multidisciplinary approach and was thankful that he had received that, but she highlighted that the access routes for the patient’s Mother had proved difficult and queried why that was. 

The Directorate Manager – Child Health (DMCH) responded that the patient was from a neighbouring Health Board and so could not answer to that specific case.  However, the DMCH confirmed that the access routes were varied into the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) and consideration was required in relation to how to manage the various approaches into CAMHS.

The CC asked if data could be provided to support what had been identified with regards to making access a more multidisciplinary approach.

The DMCH responded that it would be difficult to deliver data at its current stage but noted that the whole programme relating to the school in reach programme and the work that was being undertaken with the Regional Partnership Board (RPB) would start to demonstrate that and advised the Committee that an update report could be brought to a future meeting. 

The Deputy Chief Executive Officer (DCEO) advised the Committee that it formed part of the transformational work and hence suggested that the matter should go to the Strategy & Delivery Committee as part of the “deep dives” being provided to that Committee. 

He added that the patient story should be shared with the Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee (WHSSC) because it was a commissioned service. 

The CC responded that he would speak to WHSSC colleagues regarding this particular case.  

The Committee resolved that:

1. The Patient Story was noted.

	








	MHCL 21/10/009
	Mental Health Act Monitoring Exception Report

The Mental Act Monitoring Exception Report was received.

The Mental Health Act Team Lead (MHACTL) advised the Committee that there were 2 main items from the Exception Report to highlight.

The first was that the the Mental Health Clinical Board had confirmed that “the clock would start ticking” in Accident & Emergency (A&E) in the majority of Section 136 cases, following recent legal advice.

It was noted that the clock would start ticking if a patient was taken to A&E for a physical issue which was related to their mental disorder but noted that the appropriate shift coordinators would decide whether the physical illness was related to the mental disorder or not. 

It was noted that in circumstances where the physical treatment was unrelated to the mental disorder the clock would not start ticking until the patient was fit for a Mental Health Act assessment. 

He added that it had been agreed that the shift coordinator would be responsible for making the determination as they were responsible for coordinating the Mental Health Act assessment. 

It was noted that in all instances where the Section 136 had lapsed due to the patient not being fit for a Mental Health Act assessment, a DATIX would be completed.

The MHACTL advised the Committee that the use of Section 136 had decreased since the high record seen in May 2021.

It was noted the police had received further training regarding Section 136 powers and how they should be used as a last resort rather than a first resort and hence that could be part of the reason for the identified decrease in use. 

The second item from the Exception Report which was highlighted was that the Mental Health Review Tribunal for Wales (MHRT) had conducted a successful video conference which took place in August 2021.

The MHACTL advised the Committee that he had attended an All Wales Mental Health Act administrator’s forum last week and noted that the MHRT had been present and had updated administrators that they had conducted a video conferencing pilot throughout Wales. 

It was noted that, moving forward, (i) MHRT should be offering all patients’ video conferencing, (ii) not all Health Boards were able to facilitate video conferencing, and (iii) hence the Tribunal Panel would decide whether to move forward with video conferencing or telephone conference.

It was noted that the Senior Operations Manager for the Mental Health Review Tribunal would issue a general statement in relation to their progress moving in relation to video conferencing and face to face tribunals as well.

The IMTS asked if staff had been provided with training for the decisions that were required regarding Section 136 patients and the implications of that in relation to statutory compliance.

The MHACTL responded that the shift coordinators would be trained and noted that shift coordinators were completely involved in the process of arranging 136 assessments.

The DCEO responded that A&E was one of the most monitored places within the Health Board and noted that staff were used to the kinds of decisions that were required.  

The IMTS advised the Committee that she had found it extraordinary that it had taken the MHRT so long to allow people, who were detained against their will, to be able to challenge that via video and to still say it may not be possible in some areas was extraordinary.  

She added that the Health Board should monitor the number of people who want to use video facilities and how the Health Board can support those patients together with the changes that might occur when the legal changes were made. 

The CC commented that every other area of society had moved across to video conferencing due to the pandemic. 

The CC asked if anything had been mentioned at the All Wales Mental Health Act administrator’s forum with regards to that.

The MHACTL responded that the MHRT had identified that firewalls had caused issues in being able to perform video conferencing because all Health Boards in Wales and England used different firewalls. 

The CC advised the Committee that it was the Independent Member – Legal (IML)’s view that the MHRT should be challenged and asked if the Committee should respond to the MHRT and state that their response was unsatisfactory. 

The CC advised the Committee that the MHRT should be approached. He asked for support from the MHACTL and Deputy Director of Operations – Mental Health (DDOMH) to assist with that. 

The IMTS asked what happened to the under 18 year olds regarding Section 136 as the tolerance threshold was still quite high.  She had understood that many of these under 18 year olds were discharged and she wanted to know if they were being detained under Section 136 and/or then released back into the community. 

The DMCH responded that from looking at the data, some of the under 18 year olds had come back and forth and noted that the issues experienced by young people remained complex. 

It was noted that a lot of work was being done with the Children’s Commissioner to review cases.

The Deputy Director Operations – Mental Health (DDOMH) advised the Committee that some of the data may not be accurate due to repeat admissions and he commented that the same was also being reviewed.

It was noted that risk management plans would be developed which would give quite clear instructions to various services about how to manage individuals who present frequently. 

The Committee resolved that:

The proposed approach taken by the Mental Health Clinical Board to ensure compliance with the MHA was supported as set out in the body of the report and as follows:-
 
a) Fundamentally defective applications  
Continue to ensure effective communication between the Local Authority and UHB and promote Mental Health Act training across the UHB.  

b) Section 136 
Continue to monitor with colleagues in South Wales Police and ensure any incidents related to an assessment not being completed within the 24/36-hour period due to physical health issues are reported accordingly. 

c) Section 136 – CAMHS 
Continue to monitor and report accordingly ensuring that at least one of the people involved in the child’s formal assessment (i.e. one of the two registered medical practitioners or the approved mental health professional) is an experienced specialist CAMHS practitioner wherever possible. 
 
d) Mental Health Review Tribunal 
Continue to work with the Mental Health Review Tribunal for Wales to find a suitable resolution, to ensure that action is taken to mitigate the risks highlighted above and protect the patients’ right to a fair hearing and ensure any incidents are reported accordingly. 
 
e) Development sessions 
Continue to develop a robust rota to ensure that development sessions in relation to all areas of the Mental Health Act are available and easily accessible and explore the possibility of devising a Mental Health Act e-learning module.  

	






	MHCL 21/10/010
	Update on the Reform of the Mental Health Act 


The MHACTL advised the Committee that the UK Government had prepared a response following the consultation undertaken in relation to its White Paper relating to the review of the Mental Health legislation.  

It was noted the Welsh Government (WG) had been present at the All Wales Mental Health Act administrator’s forum and a response from Welsh Government was awaited.  

The IMTS noted that, from a devolution perspective, it would be interesting because a lot of the Mental Health Act would impact upon Welsh legislation and hence could lead to some confusion. 

The CC queried when the WG response to the UK Government’s review, was likely to be issued.

The DCEO responded that from the feedback he had received, WG were still working through the detail.   He queried where could the Health Board influence that and whether the Mental Health Clinical Board could have a part to play.  

The DDOMH responded that several discussions had taken place, in the network board, regarding the proposed legislation, and in regular meetings with Directors of Operations and WG. 


The IMTS asked if there were any timescales for the legislation.

The MHACTL responded that no timescales had been given at present.

The CC mentioned that the proposed recommendation should be changed slightly so that it was clear that the word “Government” referred to the “UK Government”.

The Committee resolved that:

a) The UK Government's response to the Independent Review of the Mental Health Act 1983, as summarised in the covering report, was noted.

	



	MHCL 21/10/011
	Mental Health Measure Monitoring Reporting including Care and Treatment Plans Update Report

The Mental Health Measure Monitoring Reporting including Care and Treatment Plans Update Report was received. 

The DDOMH advised the Committee that, with reference to the covering report, he would highlight Part 1a of the Measure for Adults and that the Director of Operations – Children & Women (DOCW) would highlight Part 1a of the Measure of Children and Young People. 

Part 1a – Adults

It was noted that the referral activity for Quarter 4 of 2020 and Quarter 1 of 2021 had seen a gradual decrease in referral rates following the initial steep rise in referrals during the first two quarters after the first lockdown, but with a notable spike in referrals in March 2021. 

It was noted that completed assessment rates had risen with a high peak of over 600 assessments in September 2021 and that assessment rates had dropped during August due to staff annual leave and term time working arrangements.

The DDOMH advised the Committee that a recent successful recruitment drive, had shown a gradual reduction in “over 56 days” waiting, and that from 26th October 2021 all booked appointments were under 56 days, with the most recent waiting time for assessment reduced from 100 days in July 2021 to 43 days on 29th September 2021. 

It was noted that, In total, 1197 were currently waiting for assessment with 342 waiting over 56 days. 

It was noted that referrals were now screened and triaged by the merged Single Point of Entry (SPOE) which had resulted in counselling waiting times improving significantly.
 
Part 1a – Children and Young People. 

The DOCW advised the Committee that compliance against the Part 1 target had not been achieved since October 2020.

It was noted that following a decline in referrals during the height of Covid, referral levels significantly increased during October 2020 and November 2020 following the re-opening of schools, and whilst there was a decrease between December and February, referrals had sharply increased from March 2021 and had remained significantly higher than pre-Covid levels.

It was noted that the average wait for assessment was currently 37 days.

It was noted that capacity had been a challenge for the team, with a mixture of short and long-term sickness, and the team had been operating on approximately 66% capacity since the beginning of December 2020.

The DOCW advised the Committee that the service was continuing to deliver its full service both virtually (via telephone and video) and face-to-face.  He expected that to continue as part of a blended service post-Covid in order to better meet the needs of children and young people who required support from the service.  

The DDOMH advised the Committee that compliance for Part 1b of the measure remained at 90% for both Adults and Children and Young People. 

It was noted that there were an additional 200 spaces created by the team to ensure that the target was maintained. 

Part 2 – Care and Treatment Planning

The DDOMH advised the Committee that there had been a slight reduction in adult services with a large spike seen in adults with learning difficulties. It was noted that the large spike identified related to 53 patients. 

It was noted that Mental Health services for older people were maintaining the steady and increased improvement over time.

It was noted that there had been an issue concerning the quality of the care and treatment plans, and a number of actions were being put forward to address the same, such as the “Care Aims” training. 

The DOCW advised the Committee that there had been a discussion regarding some areas of the Mental Health System for under 18 year olds and noted that 3 formal sessions were held each year with the delivery unit.

It was noted that there had been independent national scrutiny against the Measure and he was pleased to note that the Health Board had done very well against Parts 1a and 2, with no action needed based upon 7 external reviews. 

Part 3 - Right to request an assessment by self –referral.

The DDOMH advised the Committee that in August 2021 there had been a spike in number of self-referrals.  That represented an adjustment of the data gathering process to more accurately reflect compliance.
It was noted that each Adult Community Mental Health Team (CMHT) had an automated email sent to the team manager on a Monday morning every week that listed various things that were upcoming for patients on their caseloads, including patients who were due to receive an Outcome Letter which included a due date.

Part 4 – Advocacy – standard to have access to an IMHA within 5 working days

The DDOMH advised the Committee compliance remained at 100%   and that the only addition to the Part 4 measure update was in relation to the procurement of the advocacy service. 

The IMTS asked which areas were seeing the most pressure with regards to the volume of patients.

The DDOMH responded that the Part 1a target was where most pressure was being seen for individuals who had presented with moderate mental health problems, and that the clinical acuity tended to be lower.  However they had noticed some increase in activity in the system with regards to CMHTs and an increased demand for secondary care services. 

It was noted that additional resource had been supplied to the Emergency Unit (EU) which had resulted in a slight decrease regarding liaison activity. 

It was noted that 4 additional staff had been provided to the Part 1 services.  A drop in staff numbers had been noted in August as staff took leave, although it was noted that the managers had been working with the team to provide the support needed. 

The DOCW advised the Committee that the system as a whole was configured to have a Part 1a assessments with the least unwell right through to moderate and crisis, and noted that what had been seen was lifted acuity in all three areas.

The IMTS asked if there was any reason for the increased complexity and was there anything that should be looked at outside of the system. 

The DOCS responded that there was a general mental health need in light of the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Committee resolved that:

a) The content of the Mental Health Measure (Wales) 2010 including the Part 2 update, was noted.

	


	MHCL 21/10/012
	HIW MHA Inspection Reports 

There were no HIW MHA Inspection Reports for the period. 

	




	MHCL 21/10/013
	Sub-Committee Meeting Minutes: 

1. Hospital Managers Power of Discharge Minutes 

1. Mental Health Legislation and Governance Group Minutes

The Committee resolved:

1. The Hospital Managers Power of Discharge Minutes dated 5 October 2021 were noted.

1. The Mental Health Legislation and Governance Group Minutes dated 7 October 2021 were noted.
	







	MHCL 21/10/014
	Review of the Meeting 

The CC asked to note the Committee’s thanks to Sunni Webb, who had recently left the post of Mental Health Act Manager and thanked the Mental Health Act Team Lead for stepping in. 

The DCEO advised the Committee that the Mental Health and Capacity Legislation Committee workshops that had been provided in previous years had proved helpful and asked if there would be plans to reintroduce those in order to provide educational refreshers for new Members.

The CC advised the DCEO that he would speak with the DCG outside of the meeting.

	

	MHCL 21/10/015
	15. Date & Time of next Committee Meeting

February 9th 2022 at 10am

	



